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1. Name of Property

|21

historic name Main High School
other names/site number Main Colored School

2. Location

street & number 41 Washington Drive

city, town Rome ( ) vicinity of

county Floyd code 115

state Georgia code GA zip code 30162

( ) not for publication

3. Classification

Ownership of Property: Category of Property:

private
public-local

) ( building(s)
) (
) public-state (
) (
(

district

)
)
) site
)
)

X

(
(x
(

( structure
object

public-federal

Number of Resources within Property: Contributing Noncontributing

buildings
sites
structures
objects
total

NO OO
AOOCODN

Contributing resources previously listed in the National Register: N/A
Name of previous listing: N/A
Name of related multiple property listing: N/A
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4. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, | hereby certify
that this nomination meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of
Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. In my
opinion, the property meets the National Register criteria. () See continuation sheet.

2rGcnd L s 9-S-02

Signature of certifying official Date

W. Ray Luce
Historic Preservation Division Director
Deputy State Historic Preservation Officer

In my opinion, the property ( ) meets ( ) does not meet the National Register criteria. () See continuation sheet.

Signature of commenting or other official Date

State or Federal agency or bureau

5. National Park Service Certification
I, hereby, certify that this property is:
- (¢ .
( “@red in the National Register //)am '(]'f]i M‘/‘ — / O / 7")0 / ()2

( ) determined eligible for the National Register

() determined not eligible for the National Register

( ) removed from the National Register

( ) other, explain:

( ) see continuation sheet

ﬁ Keeper of the National Register Date
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6. Function or Use

Historic Functions:
Education: school
Current Functions:

Education: school

7. Description

Architectural Classification:

Late 19" and 20" Century Revivals: Colonial Revival
Modern Movement: International Style

Materials:

foundation concrete

walls brick
roof asphalt
other metal

Description of present and historic physical appearance:

The Main High School is a school campus built for Rome's African-American students on the north
bank of the Etowah River east of downtown Rome. Rome is a medium-sized industrial city in
northwest Georgia. The campus includes the Main High School building that was built in 1934 and a
series of International Style buildings constructed in the 1950s and 1960s to accommodate the
increasing student enroliment (attachment 1; photo 1). The campus is laid out on the west side of
large hill. The Main High School building near the top overlooks the later buildings, which were
placed randomly on the slope below. Because the complex grew so quickly on sloping land and
without a master plan, there is no symmetry or axial layout of the buildings, no clarity of circulation,
and little open space for outdoor gatherings. Most of the campus is grass and the few trees on the
property are located on the north side near the 1958 high school building.

The Main High School building, built in 1934, is a one-story, brick, Colonial Revival-style that was
built on the top of a hill behind the 1893 school building, which is no longer extant. The Main High
School Building is clad in red brick veneer and trimmed with wood painted white (attachment 1;
photos 3-6). The long rectangular-shaped building is covered with a low hip roof punctuated with
seven brick chimneys. There are few stylistic elements, except for the small pedimented front porch.
The six-over-six-light sash windows are arranged in single and triple windows across the front and
rear facades.

The interior plan as built in 1934 featured four classrooms on each side of a double-loaded corridor
(photos 8-11). Offices were located in front along the entrance corridor (photo 7) and restrooms
were placed at each end of the building. Most classrooms included coat closets. The interior was
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finished with wood floors and ceilings and plaster walls. Beaded wainscoting is located throughout
the school and the doors and windows feature molded surrounds. Blackboards survive in most
classrooms.

In 1938, Atlanta architect Odis Clay Poundstone designed two additional classrooms and an
auditorium that doubled the size of the building (photos 3 and 6). The addition, built along the south
side of the main block, was completed the next year and is similar in style and materials to the
original design. It includes entrances at each of the corners. The northernmost entrances, which
provided direct access to the auditorium lobby (photo 12), are recessed behind brick polychrome
arches. The two south-end entrances are each sheltered by a small, bracketed stoop. Due to
subsequent overcrowding, the stage and proscenium at the south end of the auditorium were
removed in the late 1950s and the space was subdivided to.form three classrooms. This historic
reconfiguration of the auditorium remains extant.

The Main High School and auditorium addition were the last buildings constructed on the campus
until a spate of new modern buildings were built between 1955 and 1963 to accommodate the
dramatically increasing student enroliment. These one-story International Style buildings, built
nearly twenty years after the Main High School building, contrast sharply with the older Colonial
Revival-style classroom building (attachments 1-2; photos 13-19).

Some of the earliest International Style buildings were built near the Main High School building at the
top of the hill. The high school annex, built in ¢.1955, is a T-shaped building with red brick veneer,
a flat roof, and large windows openings that have been filled with concrete block (photos 13-14).
There is no architectural ornament on the high school annex.

The high school, built in 1958, is the largest International Style building in the complex, although it
is banked into north side of the hill so from the uphill Main High School building its roof is visible
below grade (4 and 15-16). The long, rectangular-shaped high school is also the most stylish of the
International Style buildings on the campus. Its main entrance is signified by a tall brick wall set
perpendicular to the main fagade. The brick wall is joined to a reinforced concrete slab that forms
the covered entrance porch. The north wall is glazed with banks of windows set in metal frames.
Like the other buildings, the high school is clad with red brick veneer and has a flat roof but no
ornament.

The brick gymnasium, built in ¢.1955, features a bow-arched roof and brick pilasters between the
large metal-framed windows (17-19). The lobby on the north side of the gymnasium features a flat
roof cantilevered on the three sides with a flat-roofed entrance porch.

The elementary school annex no. 1, built in ¢.1962, is an L-shaped building located in the center of
the campus (attachments 1-2; photo 17). Like the other buildings, it is one-story with red brick
veneer, and no ornament. The slight pitch of its roof is visible from the north side.

The elementary school, built in the 1963, is located at the foot the hill and is irregularly shaped with
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red brick veneer and a flat roof (attachments 1-2; photos 1-2 and 19).

The elementary school annex no. 2, built in 1963, is an L-shaped building constructed of blond-
brick veneer with a flat roof. It is located adjacent to the elementary school (attachment 1; photo 2).

The four noncontributing buildings on the Main High School campus were built after desegregation
and are outside the 1969 period of significance. The Main Elementary School building is located in
the northwest corner of the campus (attachment 1; photo 18). It is built of brick with segmental
arches on the north and east sides and a metal hip roof. The remaining noncontributing buildings
are two temporary trailers located between the elementary school and the elementary school annex
no. 2 (attachment 1; photo 2) and a small wood storage shed that is located on the south side of the
elementary school annex no. 2 (no photo).

The Main High School campus retains a high level of historic integrity. Few changes have been
made to the campus since the 1969 period of significance. The seven contributing buildings reflect
their historic design, materials, and craftsmanship and the campus grounds retain their historic
appearance. The surrounding area provides the feeling of the school's historic setting. The high
level of historic integrity along with the architectural style of the buildings and their relative locations
on the hillside convey the historic development and physical evolution of the Main High School
campus.

Main High School, Floyd County, Georgia



8. Statement of Significance

Certifying official has considered the significance of this property in relation to other

properties:

() nationally (x ) statewide ( x ) locally

Applicable National Register Criteria:

( x)A (x)B (x)C : ( )D
Criteria Considerations (Exceptions): ( ) N/A

( )A ( )B ()C ( )D ( )E ( )F
Areas of Significance (enter categories from instructions):
Architecture

Education

Ethnic Heritage: Black

Period of Significance:

1934-1969

Significant Dates:

1934 - City of Rome built Main High School building.

1939 - Two classrooms and an auditorium added to high school building.
¢.1955 — Gymnasium built.

¢.1955 -- High school annex built.

1958 — New high school building built.

€.1962 - Elementary school annex no. 1 built.

1963 — New elementary school building built.

1963 — Elementary school annex no. 2 built.

1966-1969 — Desegregation of Rome’s public schools.

1969 — Main High School closed.

Significant Person(s):

N/A

Cultural Affiliation:

N/A

(x)G
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Architect(s)/Builder(s):

Poundstone, Odis Clay (architect)
Roberts, J. P. (builder)
Townsend, R. L. (builder)
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Statement of significance (areas of significance)

The Main High School is a compact school campus with the oldest building, the Main High School
building built in 1934, near the top of a hill and most of the later buildings from the 1950s and 1960s
laid out below on the steep north and west slopes. In 1894, the city of Rome established the Main
High School as the only public school available to the city's African-American students. The campus
continued to serve the city's blacks through the 1960s, with most of its educational buildings having
been built during the last years of segregation. The school, which closed in 1969, is significant in
the areas of social history, black ethnic heritage, and architecture because it is an important
community landmark associated with Rome's period of racial segregation and because its buildings
are excellent examples of school architecture from the 1930s and the 1950s and 1960s.

Main High School is significant in the area of social history and black ethnic heritage at the local
level because for 75 years the Main High School campus served as the only public school available
to Rome’s African-American students. The so-called "Jim Crow" laws dictated that in public places
blacks and whites used separate facilities. These included separate entrances and seating areas,
restrooms and water fountains, seating on buses, and separate public schools. Facilities for African
Americans were nearly always inferior to the accommodations made for whites. Segregation
affected nearly every aspect of the public life in cities, small towns, and rural counties throughout the
South.

After segregation ended with successes won by blacks during the American Civil Rights Movement
of the 1960s, barriers separating whites from blacks were removed or converted to other purposes.
Within a few decades, evidence of segregation in public places had mostly disappeared. "Whites
Only" and "Colored" signage is especially rare. Public schools built in Georgia before the 1960s are
among the few building types that retain physical vestiges of segregation because they were
dedicated to either African-American or white students. Black and white students never attended the
same schools before desegregation beginning in the middle 1960s.

In the broadest sense, Main High School was similar to other racially segregated schools in Georgia,
which had inferior facilities than those provided to white schools. Main High School suffered
constant overcrowding. Less than twenty years after the auditorium was built it had to be subdivided
to provide needed classroom space. Seven new buildings were constructed between 1955 and 1963
to ease overcrowding and improve the school's facilities. Main High School, however, is
distinguished from other segregated schools in Georgia because it offered a complete curriculum,
rather than the standard program for blacks that emphasized only vocational skills. Main High
School provided Rome’s blacks with courses in English, history, science, math, and music that were
also part of the standard academic curriculum for the city’s white schools.

The historic district is also significant in the area of architecture because buildings on the campus
reflect architectural styles commonly used for educational buildings from the 1930s through the
1960s. The earliest surviving building constructed on the Main High School campus is the Colonial
Revival-style Main High School building, built in 1934. The Colonial Revival style was among the
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most popular styles for schools in Georgia from the 1920s through the 1940s. The style had been
popular for nearly a decade when New Deal-era programs in the 1930s funded the construction of
schools throughout the state. Schools built in the Colonial Revival style range from high-style
examples, such as the Sycamore School (1920s) in Turner County, to mostly plain buildings with
only elements of the Colonial Revival style, such as the Southside School (1941) in Brooks County.
Colonial Revival-style schools are usually red brick buildings with white trim, sometimes with an
ornate classical entrance and a cupola surmounting the gable roof.

The Main High School building, built in 1934, is typical of schools built in the Colonial Revival style
throughout Georgia in the decades before World War Il. It is a plain building, rectangular in shape
with a low hip roof. The wood-frame building is covered with red brick veneer and trimmed in white-
painted wood trim. There are few stylistic elements, except for the small pedimented front porch.
The six-over-six-light sash windows are arranged in single and triple windows across the front and
rear facades. The interior is similarly plain with wood floors and ceilings and plaster walls. Beaded
wainscoting is located throughout the school and the doors and windows feature molded surrounds.
The highly intact interior includes historic spaces, such as classrooms, offices, bathrooms, and coat
closets and education-related features, such as blackboards.

In the late 1950s and early 1960s, the city built six new buildings at the Main High School in the
International Style of architecture. In the United States, the International Style was largely a post-
World War Il phenomenon. This is especially true for Southern states, such as Georgia, which
remained devoted to classicism well into the 1950s. Rich's Store for Men in Atlanta, designed by the
Atlanta firm Stevens and Wilkinson in 1951, is considered the first major International Style building
in Georgia. Its Broad Street fagade, a five-story glass curtain wall, is characteristic of the
International Style and influenced other architects in Georgia. Faculty at the Georgia Institute of
Technology in Atlanta at the middle of the 20™ century, such as Harold Bush-Brown, J. H. Gaily, and
Paul Hefernan, reshaped the Tech campus in the International Style and trained a generation of
architects who designed modern buildings in Atlanta and throughout the South.

By the late 1950s, International Style buildings had become more common in Georgia, both in major
urban centers and in small towns in rural counties. Many builders embraced the style for its
economical use modern materials, simple massing, and lack of ornament but neglected important
lessons advocated the master's of the Modern Movement, such as craftsmanship, proportion, purity
of form, and context. This is especially true for developers of small-scale buildings built in the state's
rural areas. In many Georgia communities, the first modern building was often a public building,
such as a post office, county building, or school. After World War Il, new classroom buildings,
gymnasiums, libraries, and annex buildings were built across the state because of federal assistance
for the construction of educational facilities and because Georgia consolidated its schools at the
county level, often resulting in the construction of new school buildings that could accommodate the
increased numbers of students. These buildings were often built in the International Style with
simple rectangular forms, brick walls, large banks of metal-framed windows, flat roofs, and no
ornament of any kind. In many cases, flat-roofed breezeways connect modern buildings with other
campus buildings or provide sheltered places for students to wait for rides.

Main High School, Floyd County, Georgia 9
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The International Style buildings that were built between 1955 and 1963 at the Main High School
campus are typical of educational buildings constructed throughout the state during the third quarter
of the 20" century. The buildings represent many of the fundamental principles of modernism, such
as plain massing composed of simple geometric forms, abstract and asymmetrical design, the use of
modern materials, and the lack of references to past architectures styles, or ornament of any kind.
The modern Main High School buildings are one-story, square- or rectangular-shaped, with flat
roofs. The high school, built in 1958, features the most high-style design elements of all the campus
buildings. Its main entrance is signified by an abstract arrangement in which a tall brick wall is set
perpendicular to the main fagade. The brick wall supports a reinforced concrete slab that forms the
covered entrance porch. In addition, the north wall is glazed with banks of windows set in metal
frames. Large expanses of glass are characteristic of International Style buildings and made
possible by the use of modern materials, such as steel framing. Glass window walls were aiso well
suited to school buildings because they provided the classrooms with ample natural light.

National Register Criteria

A - The Main High School is significant in the areas of education and black ethnic heritage because
during the period of segregation from the late 19" century to the 1960s the Main High School
campus served as the only public school available to Rome’s African-American students. On a
statewide level, the school is significant for offering African-American students a complete
educational program rather than the more common vocational-oriented curriculum.

C - Main Hi%h School is an excellent example of school design un Georgia from the first decades of
the early 20" century with the Colonial Revival-style Main High School building through the post-
World War |l period when numerous buildings designed in the International Style were added to the
campus.

Criteria Considerations (if applicable)

The period of significance for the Main High School extends to 1969. The school meets Criterion
Consideration G because it continues to achieve significance into a period less than fifty years
before the nomination. The construction of the six buildings between 1955 and 1963 represents
efforts by the city of Rome to continue its segregationist policies in the area of public education.
Desegregation began in 1966 when the city's African-American students were offered the choice of
attending either of Rome's two white schools or remaining at Main High School. So many students
opted to leave that by 1969 Main High School closed because of insufficient enroliment. Main High
School is of exceptional importance because more than any other resource type, schools—and their
associated policies on racial segregation—had a tremendous impact on black and white communities
in the South.

Main High School, Floyd County, Georgia 10
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Period of significance (justification)

The period of significance begins in 1934, when the earliest surviving school building was built and
ends in 1969, the year Main High School closed.

Contributing/Noncontributing Resources (explanation, if necessary)

The Main High School nomination includes seven contributing buildings: the Main High School
building (1934 with a 1939 addition), gymnasium (c.1955), high school annex (c.1955), new high
school building (1958), elementary school annex no. 1 (c.1962), new elementary school (1963), and
elementary school annex no. 2 (1963). The four noncontributing properties associated with this
nomination were built after 1969 and include the Main Elementary School building, two temporary
trailers, and a wood storage shed.

Developmental history/historic context (if appropriate)

Rome City Schools was established in 1883. That year, the city began construction of the first school
in the new school system. The school was dedicated for white students only. The city's African-
American students were taught in rented office space for ten years before the Rome City Schools
Board of Trustees approved funds for the construction of the Main Colored School for Rome's African-
American students. The two-story Italianate-style building was named Main Colored School because it
was the principal school for Rome's black students. The school taught grades one through eight from
1894 until 1925. By 1930, the curriculum was extended to eleven years of schooling. The twelfth
grade was not added until the 1952-1953 academic year. By 1932, the school had come to be known
as Main High School.

In 1934, the Board of Education applied for federal funds to build a new classroom building. In a letter
from June 2,1934, J. Glover McGhee, chairman of the Rome Board of Education, wrote: " . . . in the
Negro School Building, located in North Rome, there are not sufficient classrooms for the number of
pupils enrolled. There are ten classrooms at this location, in which twelve grades are being housed at
the present time. Not only are several of these grades badly over-crowded, but four of them are on
part time, each being given only half of the regular school day, because of lack of class-rooms. Under
these unfortunate conditions, it is impossible to give just and proper training to the pupils enrolied."

The city's request for federal funds was denied and so the city council responded by approving $300
for the purchase of land behind the existing school and $11,000 for the construction of a new
classroom building to ease the overcrowded conditions. The new building, called the Main High
School building, was built by day laborers under the supervision of R. L. Townsend. The one-story,
brick Colonial Revival-style building featured two classrooms on each side of a double-loaded corridor.

In response to persistent overcrowding, the city authorized the construction of two additional
classrooms and an auditorium. Atlanta architect Odis Clay Poundstone designed the addition in 1938.
The addition was completed the next year by the contractor J. P. Roberts. The school board furnished
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the new classrooms with desks that had been used in the city's white high school. Electric lights were
installed at Main High School in 1940, three years after they had been reinstalled in the white high
school. In 1962, the original school building that was built in 1894 was destroyed by fire.

As the only public school for black students in the Rome area, enroliment increased dramatically
after World War Il with over 1,200 students by the early 1960s. The Main High School served both
city and nearby county residents under an agreement in which the city paid for land and the
construction of a new high school building and the county provided funds for teacher salaries. The
new high school, which was completed in 1958, was part of a building campaign by the city in the
last years of segregation. Six buildings were constructed between 1955 and 1963, including the
gymnasium (c.1955); high school annex (c.1955); high school building (1958); elementary school
annex no. 1 (¢.1962); elementary school building (1963); elementary school annex no. 2 (1963).
After the construction of the new high school in 1958, the Main High School building served as the
junior high school and its auditorium was subdivided into three classrooms.

Main High School is distinguished from other segregated schools in Georgia because it offered a
complete curriculum, rather than the standard program for African Americans that emphasized only
vocational skills. Main High School provided Rome’s black students with courses in English, history,
science, and math. Music, which was also part of the standard academic curriculum for the city’s white
schools, had been taught at Main High School as early as 1919. The official band program began in
1948. Many of its graduates continued their academic careers. By the time of its tenth reunion, 80
percent of the class of 1935, for example, had obtained a college degree.

Desegregation of Rome's public schools began in 1966 with 200 African-American students (county
residents) from Main High School transferring to the previously all-white county high school.
Beginning in the 1967-1968 academic year, all students were allowed to attend the school of their
choice under the Freedom of Choice Desegregation Plan. At the beginning of the 1968-1969 school
year, the ninth and tenth grades at Main High School transferred to the East and West Rome High
Schools. The remaining grades transferred the following year. With the entire student body of Main
High School integrated into the previously all-white East and West Rome High Schools, Main High
School closed in 1969.

The Main High School campus currently serves numerous education-related functions. The Main
High School building is used for storage by the school system. The 1958 high school building serves
as the Rome Transitional Academy and the Rome City Schools Technology Center. The gymnasium
is used by the Boys and Girls Club of Rome and the noncontributing Main Elementary School
continues to serve as an elementary school.
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10. Geographical Data

Acreage of Property Approximately 15 acres

UTM References

A) Zone 16 Easting 669770 Northing 3792180
B) Zone 16 Easting 670010 Northing 3792250
C) Zone 16 Easting 670310 Northing 3791950
D) Zone 16 Easting 669660 Northing 3791960
Verbal Boundary Description

The National Register boundary is indicated by a heavy black line on the attached map, which is
drawn to scale.

Boundary Justification

The National Register boundary comprises the tract of land historically associated with Main High
School and includes all of the contributing resources that are included in this nomination.

Main High School, Floyd County, Georgia



11. Form Prepared By

State Historic Preservation Office

name/title Steven Moffson, Architectural Historian

organization Historic Preservation Division, Georgia Department of Natural Resources
mailing address 156 Trinity Avenue, S.W., Suite 101

city or town Atlanta state Georgia zip code 30303

telephone (404) 656-2840 date August 25, 2002

e-mail steven_moffson@dnr.state.ga.us

Consulting Services/Technical Assistance (if applicable)( ) not applicable

nameltitle Mark Grindstaff and Delmos Stone
organization City of Rome

mailing address P.O. Box 1433

city or town Rome state GA zip code 30162
telephone (706) 236-5025

e-mail N/A

( ) property owner

( ) consultant

( ) regional development center preservation planner
(x) other: city staff

X
Property Owner or Contact Information

name (property owner or contact person) Ann Arnold, Director

organization (if applicable) Downtown Development and Historic Preservation (City of Rome)

mailing address P.O. Box 1433
city or town Rome state GA zip code 30162
e-mail (optional) N/A

Main High School, Floyd County, Georgia

15



NPS Form 10-900-a OMB Approved No. 1024-0018
United States Department of the Interior, Natiorial Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

Photographs

Name of Property: Main High School

City or Vicinity: Rome

County: Floyd

State: Georgia

Photographer: James R. Lockhart

Negative Filed: Georgia Department of Natural Resources

Date Photographed: December 2001

Description of Photograph(s):

Number of photographs: 19

1. View of campus, photographer facing east.

2. View of campus from Grady Avenue, photographer facing east.

3. Main High School building (1934) with addition (1939), right, photographer facing northeast.

4. Main High School building with new high school building (1958), left, photographer facing
northeast.

5. Main High School building, entrance detail, photographer facing northeast.

6. Main High School building, photographer facing northwest.

7. Main High School building, interior, main entrance corridor, photographer facing northwest.
8. Main High School building, interior, main corridor, photographer facing north.

9. Main High School building, interior, classroom no. 1, photographer facing north.

10. Main High School building, interior, classroom no. 4, photographer facing northeast.

11. Main High School building, interior, classroom no. 6, photographer facing southwest.

12. Main High School building, interior, auditorium lobby with auditorium entrances, left, and
southwest entrance to building, center, photographer facing west.

13. High school annex (c.1955), photographer facing north.

14. High school annex, photographer fécing northeast.
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15. High school (1958), detail of main entrance, photographer facing west.

16. Elementary school annex no 1 (¢.1962), with high school (1958), right, photographer facing
northwest.

17. Elementary school annex no. 1 (¢.1962), with gymnasium (c.1955), left, photographer facing
north.

18. Gymnasium (¢.1955), with nonhistoric elementary school, center right, photographer facing west.
19. Clockwise from extreme left, elementary school annex no. 1(1963), two nonhistoric temporary

trailers, elementary school (1963), nonhistoric elementary school, and gymnasium (c.1955),
photographer facing west.

(HPD WORD form version 11-03-01)
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